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Subjects: Issuance of Notice of Violations (NOV)
Request for OAC rule 3745-15-06(D) PMMAP by October 8, 2012
Request for Additional Information by September 24, 2012
OAC rule 3745-15-04 Request for Emission Test within 90 Days

Dear Mr. Klenda:

Based on the information provided by Carmeuse Lime, Inc. Maple Grove Operation
(Carmeuse) in the facility's Title V Annual Compliance Report, received April 23, 2012,
the facility conducted internal diagnostic emission testing on the Lime Kilns, emissions
units P003 and P004, that resulted in an exceedance of the facility's MACT PM
emission limit. Upon review of the Title V Annual Compliance Report, Northwest District
Office (NWDO) requested that the facility provide additional information regarding the
diagnostic test.

On June 25, 2012, Carmeuse submitted the results of the June 2-3, 2011, emission
test, the probable cause of the excess emissions recorded during the test, and the
corrective actions that were taken as a result. This NOV is being issued to the facility
for the following violations regarding the emission test and malfunction event:

1.	 Violations of Title V Permit Emission Limitations and BACT Reuirements

On June 2-3, 2011, the company performed internal diagnostic emission testing
on P003 and P004. The test resulted in the following emission rates, as reported
by the stack testing firm:
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Range of Emission Average	 TV Permit
Rates Achieved	 Emission Rate Emission Limit
During Test	 During Test

PM (pounds/hour)* 70.2 - 388.1 	 220.7	 28.46 (14.23/kiln)
grains PM 10/dscf	 0.077 - 0.411	 0.226	 - 0.021
*The particulate emission rates providea above represent me totai particuaie
emissions from the shared stack serving P003 and P004.

The emission rates reported from the June 2-3, 2011, stack test are violations of
the PM 10 emission limitations and Best Available Control Technology (BACT)
requirements established in PTI #03-13527 and contained within the facility's
Title V permit, issued January 24, 2004, OAC rule 3745-31-05(A)(3), OAC rule
3745-21-10 through -20, and ORG section 3704.05.

2. Violation of OAC rule 3745-17-11 Emission Limitation

Based on Carmeuse's PSD application, PT! #03-13527, the combined
uncontrolled mass rate of emissions (UMRE) for the kilns is 2,838 pounds
particulate emissions (PE)/hour. This UMRE results in an OAC rule 3745-17-
11 (B)/Figure II allowable of 50.0 pounds PE/hour from the combined baghouse
stack.

The results of the June 2-3, 2011, test are in violation of OAC rule 3745-17-11(B)
and ORC section 3704.05.

3. Violation of OAC rule 3745-77-07A)(3)(c) to Report Deviations of Emission
Limitations

In accordance with the facility's Title V Permit, the facility shall provide quarterly
reports to Ohio EPA that identify: (a) any deviations from federally enforceable
emission limitations, operational restrictions, and control device operating
parameter limitations; (b) the probable cause of such deviations; and (c) any
corrective actions or preventative measures taken. Failure to report such
deviations is a violation of the facility's Title V permit, OAC rule 3745-77-
07(A)(3)(c), and ORC section 3704.05.

4. Violation of OAC rule 3745-15706: Malfunction of Equipment

In their June 25, 2012, email, Carmeuse indicated that the probable cause of the
excess emissions recorded during the June 2011, emission test was the result of
poor bag seals caused from deformed tub sheets.
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In accordance with OAC rule 3745-15-06(B), malfunctions of air pollution control
equipment that cause the emission of air contaminants in violation of any
applicable law, must immediately be reported to Ohio EPA.

Failure to follow the malfunction reporting requirements is a violation of OAC rule
3745-15-06 and ORC section 3704.05.

Req uest for Preventative Maintenance and Malfunction Abatement Plan by
October 8, 2012

In accordance with OAC rule 3745-15-06(D), Ohio EPA requests Carmeuse
submit a Preventative Maintenance and Malfunction Abatement Plan (PMMAP)
for the baghouses serving P003 and P004. The PMMAP shall be designed to
prevent, detect, and correct malfunctions or equipment failures which could result
in emissions exceeding any applicable law.

The permittee shall specify the following minimum items in the PMMAP:

a. A comprehensive preventive maintenance program, including a
description of the items or conditions that will be inspected, the frequency
of these inspections or repairs, and an identification of the types and
quantities of the replacement parts which will be maintained in inventory
for quick replacement;

b. An identification of the source and the operating outlet variables of the air
pollution control equipment that will be monitored in order to detect a
malfunction or failure, the normal operating range of these variables, and
a description of the monitoring or surveillance procedures and of the
method of informing operating personnel of any malfunction, including
alarm systems, lights and/or other indicators; and

C. A description of the corrective procedures that will be taken in the event of
a malfunction or failure in order to achieve compliance with any applicable
law as expeditiously as practicable.

Please submit an electronic copy of the Preventative Maintenance and
Malfunction Abatement Plan as directed above through the company's eBusiness
account by no later than October 8, 2012.
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5. Violation of Title V Permit/Title V Annual Compliance Certification Report

The facility neglected to include in their Title V Annual Compliance Certification
Report the exceedance of their Title V PM 10 emission limitations during the June
2011, stack test, which is a violation of OAC rules 3745-77-07(C) and ORC
section 3704.05. The facility was obviously aware of this violation at the time of
submission since the excoedance of the MACT PM emission limit was reported.

6. Violation of 40 CFR Part 63 (MACT/NESHAP), Sub part AAAAA Emission
Limitation

Pursuant to §63.7090(a), for existing lime plants and their associated lime
coolers that did not have a wet scrubber installed and operating prior to January
5, 2004, PM emissions must not exceed 0.12 pound per ton stone feed (tsf).

The results of the June 2-3, 2011, test ranged from 0.800 - 1.012 pounds PM/tsf
(0.865 pound PM/tsf average), which is a violation of 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart
AAAAA. However, because this emission limit is not contained within the
facility's Title V permit, Ohio EPA does not have the delegation of authority to
enforce it. US. EPA has been notified of this violation.

Request for Additional Information by September 24, 2012

Based on the results of an Ohio EPA witnessed stack test, on September 27, 2011, that
easily met the PM emission limit established in 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart AAAAA, it
appears that the corrective actions taken by the company were sufficient to address the
cause of the excess emissions. However, at this time, NWDO is requesting Carmeuse
provide the following additional information by September 24, 2012:
1. Carmeuse indicated that the emission violations during the June 2011, stack test

were the result of 'poor bag seals caused from deformed tube sheets". NWDO is
uncertain how such a malfunction would result in increased levels of PM 10 and
condensable particulates. It is our understanding that a baghouse would not
typically provide control of PM 10 and condensable particulates; however, the
company has indicated that a baghouse malfunction caused a marked increase
in these pollutants. NWDO is requesting additional details to support your June
25, 2012, email.

2. The exact dates during which baghouse maintenance was performed to correct
the excess emission event and a description of the maintenance that was
performed on each date.
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3. Any additional parametric monitoring activities (i.e.: pressure drops), including
ranges, that were performed by the company during the September 27, 2011,
stack test [other than those performed in accordance with the facility's Title V
Permit] that ensured the baghouse was operating at its optimal efficiency.

4. The product that was being manufactured during the June 2011, stack test (i.e.:
DOW, MET, etc.).

5. Submit a revised 2011 Title V Annual Compliance Certification Report through
eBusiness that is indicative of all the particulate violations that occurred during
the June 2011, stack test.

OAC rule 3745-15-04 Request for Stack Testing

Particulate Matter Testing Requirements

NWDO is very concerned at the level of PM 10 emissions reported during the June 2011,
stack test. It is most alarming that the facility was unaware that they were experiencing
a malfunction during the test that could have resulted in such high emissions. Due to
the fact that the particulate emissions were primarily PM 10 and condensable
particulates, the facility's continuous opacity monitor (COM) would have been ineffective
in detecting the malfunction. As this is the current indicator of compliance used for the
kilns and it has been proven to be an inefficient compliance tool for PM 10 , NWDO is
requesting that the facility develop an annual emission testing plan for PM10.

Pursuant to OAC rule 3745-15-04, Ohio EPA is requesting that Carmeuse - Maple
Grove conduct annual stack tests to determine the compliance status of their PM10
emission limitations, as specified in their Title V permit.

• The stack tests shall be conducted in accordance with the test methods and
procedures specified in 40 CFR, Part 60, Appendix A, Methods 1-4 and in 40
CFR, Part 51, Appendix M, Methods 201/201A and 202. Alternative U.S. EPA
approved test methods may be used with prior approval from the Ohio EPA.

• The first stack test shall be conducted within 90 days following the date of this
letter.

• Subsequent tests shall be conducted annually, within 12 months following the
date of the previous year's stack test. This requirement will eventually be rolled
into the facility's Title V permit.
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The tests shall be conducted under those representative conditions that
challenge to the fullest extent possible the facility's ability to meet the applicable
emissions limits and/or control requirements, unless otherwise specified or
approved by NWDO. Although this generally consists of operating the emissions
unit at its maximum material input/production rates and results in the highest
emission rate of the tested pollutant, there may be circumstances where a lower
emissions loading is deemed the most challenging control scenario. Failure to
test under these conditions is justification for not accepting the test results as a
demonstration of compliance.

Not later than 30 days prior to the proposed test date, an "Intent to Test"
notification shall be submitted to NWDO. The "Intent to Test" notification shall
describe in detail the proposed test methods and procedures, the emissions unit
operating parameters, the time(s) and date(s) of the test(s), and the person(s)
who will be conducting the test(s). Failure to submit such notification for review
and approval prior to the test(s) may result in NWDO's refusal to accept the
results of the emission test(s).

NWDO personnel shall be permitted to witness the test(s), examine the testing
equipment, and acquire data and information necessary to ensure that the
operation of the emissions unit and the testing procedures provide a valid
characterization of the emissions from the emissions unit and/or the performance
of the control equipment.

• A comprehensive written report on the results of the emissions test(s) shall be
signed by the person or persons responsible for the tests and submitted to
NWDO within 30 days following completion of the test(s). The permittee may
request additional time for the submittal of the written report, where warranted,
with prior approval from NWDO.

Nitrogen Oxides, Sulfur Dioxide, and Carbon Monoxide Testing Regpirements

Ohio EPA, DAPC Engineering Guide #16 proposes stack testing frequency guidelines
for facilities based on the facility designation, the potential emission levels of the
emissions unit, and the compliance margin of previous tests. According to the
engineering guide, it would be appropriate for Carmeuse to perform stack testing on
P003 and P004 for NOx, SO 2, and CO every 2.5 years. The most recent, witnessed
stack test conducted at the facility for these pollutants was in December 2008.
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Pursuant to OAC rule 3745-15-04, Ohio EPA, NWDO is requesting that Carmeuse -
Maple Grove conduct a stack test to determine the compliance status of their NOx, SO2,
and CO emission limitations, as specified in their Title V permit. The stack test shall be
conducted within 90 days following the date of this letter and shall follow the testing
guidelines outlined above. Subsequent testing shall be conducted in accordance with
Engineering Guide #16, unless otherwise specified by Ohio EPA.

Please note that since the VOC and lead emission levels at the facility are less
significant and the results of the December 2008 test demonstrated levels below 50%
the allowable emission rates, Engineering Guide #16 recommends testing be performed
at the discretion of Ohio EPA. At this time, NWDO is not requesting VOC or lead
emission testing at the facility.

Be advised that the submission of information to respond to this letter does not
constitute a waiver of Ohio EPA's authority to seek civil penalties pursuant to ORC
section 3704.06. The Ohio EPA will make the decision on whether to pursue or decline
to pursue such penalties regarding this matter at a later date.

Should you have any questions and/or comments regarding this letter, please contact
me at (419) 373-3052 or by email at andrea.odendahl@epa.state.oh.us .

Sincerely,

nnifer Jolliff, Enforcement Supervisor
Division of Air Pollution Control

/llr

ec: William MacDowell, US EPA - Region 5
Bruce Weinberg, DAPC-CO
Jennifer Jofliff, DAPC-NWDO
Andrea Odendahl, DAPC-NWDO
Jan Tredway, DAPC-NWDO
Mohammad Smidi, DAPC-NWDO
Miranda Garlock, DAPC-NWDO
Stacey Rader, Carmeuse Lime Maple Grove
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